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The St. Charles Historic District encompasses an area 8)4 blocks long 

and 1)4 blocks wide, fronting on the west bank of the Missouri River. 

The Historic District is bounded on the north by the south line of 

Madison Street; on the east by the Missouri Hiver; on the south (east 

of Main Street) by the north line of Chauncey Street and (west of 

Main Street) by a line running along the west line of Main Street 

100 feet south from the south line of the Boonslick Road and thence 

westwardly JO feet to a point 50'6" south of the Boonsliek Road; 

and on the west by an alley running north and south from Boonslick 

Road to Madison Street or the extensions of the alley where an alley 

does not exist. South Main Street forms the long axis of the district. 

(Boundaries established by St. Charles City Ordinance No. 3375, refer 

to the attached site plan Bap.) The district is oriented 22 degrees 

east of north.

Throughout the old section of St. Charles the streets are laid out 

in a regular grid with blocks 325 x 250 feet square. Typically the 

short sides of the blocks are oriented north and south and the longer 

sides, east and west. The longer sides of each block are connected 

by an alley which bisects these sides at their midpoint. The St. 

Charles Historic District includes blocks 13-20 along the river. 

These blocks have an irregular eastern edge which was determined by 

the high-water line of the Missouri River. The Historic District's 

second range of blocks, on the west side of South Main Street, con 

sists of the eastern halves of blocks 23-30 and the northeast corner 

of block 22.

The area contains a total of approximately 102 buildings of which 

approximately 60 are noteworthy, and 10 are worthy of further study 

in order to establish their importance within the context of the 

district. The greatest concentration of noteworthy structures occurs 

on South Main Street between Tompkius Street and First Capitol Drive. 

Houses closely resembling those of the district are also scattered 

throughout the city of St. Charles, but they are not of sufficient 

concentration to warrant including the entire city within the boun 

daries of the Historic District.

The structures on South Main Street are aligned, with facades adja 

cent to the sidewalk and ridge roofs commonly sharing the sane 

northeast-southwest orientation as South Main Street. Character 

istically the structures are 1# to 2)4 stories high with a rectangular 

plan front block and rear ell additions. The ridge roofs of the 

front sections are oriented parallel to the street passing in front. 

Chimneys" are centered on the"vertical aidlines of the gable end walls. 

In several examples adjacent structures have their gable end walls 

abutted. The structures were built for commercial and/or residential 

occupancy. The two story structures typically have living quarters 

located above the street level businesses. '
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The surviving examples of the earliest buildings in the district 

date from the early _nin«teenth. ceatury. These structures are 

typically constructed of masonry (brick or stone) on a low stone 

foundation with a plain street facade and fenestration evenly 

distributed on each facade but not necessarily symmetrical (with 

respect to the vertical midline of the facade). The front 

entrances are only one or two steps above street level. Typical 

finish includes simple wooden cornices, and monolithic stone 

lintels or brick relieving arches over the window and door open 

ings. Windows are generally 6 over 6 light, double-hung sash. 

Openings include entrances to passageways and carriageways giving 

access to the rear from the street. Several examples of the 

pedestrian passageways survive. The carriageways have been filled 

in with additional buildings, except at the First Missouri State 

Capitol Building where the carriageway has been restored to its 

original form. The rear aspects of the early St. Charles buildings 

have ell extensions with galleries along one side. The back yards 

include small gardens, storage sheds, outbuildings of necessity, 

and wells.

Primary examples of buildings dating from the early nineteenth 

century are the 1) Missouri First State Capitol Building, 208- 

216 South Main Street, which was constructed prior to 1820. 

(Kenneth £. Coombe, "A Restoration Plan For the First State 

Capitol of Missouri, St. Charles, Missouri," p. 29) and 2) Stone 

Bow, 314-330 South Main Street, constructed ca. 1815. (Building 

permit granted to Thomas Lindsay for construction of the north 

section, 1815, archive of the late Edna McElhiney Olson, St. 

Charles, Missouri.)

The First Missouri State Capitol Building is a series of three 

adjoining structures, built of handmade brick, two stories high 

and one room deep. Each unit has a central door and flanking 

windows on the street level, separated by the arched passageway 

which extends the depth of the buildings to the rear yard. The 

street level openings are balanced on the second floor by a row 

of eleven windows. All windows have 12 over 12 light double- 

hung sash. A single ridge roof with hand-split wood shingles 

covers the three structures. This building is owned by the 

Missouri State Park Board. An extensive $500,000.00 restoration 

project for the building, is nearing completion.
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Stone fiow consists of two stone buildings, two and one-half stories 

high. The stone buildings were formerly separated by a twenty 

foot wide carriageway which is now occupied by a brick structure 

dating from the mid-nineteenth century. The later brick building 

has the same form and profile as the stone row. The row is in 

residential and commercial use at present. Extensive repair and 

restoration work is needed.

Both the First Missouri State Capitol Building and Stone Dow are 

listed oa the National Register of Historic Places as separate 

sites.

Mid-nineteenth century alterations to early buildings in the dis 

trict include the addition of Mansard roofs, gable windows, orna 

mental shingles, wrought iron, more elaborate cornice treatment 

and federal type doors with flanking lights. These features were 

also incorporated into the buildings constructed in the South Main 

Street area, during the old to late nineteenth century.

The federal style two story brick residence at 625 South Main 

Street dating from ca. the late 1830's (Edna McELhiney Olson, 

comp. Historical Saint Charles. Missouri. 1967, n.p.) exhibits 

some of the features which began to appear near the mid-nine 

teenth century. The house is back from the street instead of 

flush with the sidewalk. The primary facade is symmetrical, 

five bays wide with the entrance door centered on the front. 

The north and south gable end walls have double end chimneys 

connected with a parapet wall. Old views of the house (Olson, 

1967, n.p.) show a white picket fence surrounding the yard. The 

first floor is 10 steps above the ground level on a high founda 

tion.

The Schemmer Brothers Wagon and Blacksmith Shop, constructed 1890, 

(Olson, 1967, n.p.) represents the late nineteenth century period 

of construction in a form that is still compatible with the 

Historic District. This structure exhibits the decorative poten 

tial of brickwork. The facade is a false front gable end orna 

mented with brick pilasters and corbeled features framing the 

raised central portion. The cornice detailing includes corbeled 

brick and brick dentil work.
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Structures of historical importance in the district include 

several inns, called "taverns." Notable among remaining examples 

is the Western House located at the southwest corner of the Boon- 

slick Hoad and South Main Street. This brick structure is 2# 

stories high on a stone foundation. The south and north gable end 

walls have double chimneys connected by a parapet wall. The pri 

mary (east) facade is 5 bays wide. The windows have double-hung 

sash with both 6 over 6, and 2 over 2 lights. Jack arches support 

the weight of the wall above the window openings. The doorways 

have transoms above and relieving arches. Old views of the struc 

ture show a wooden awning, with open, railed deck above, over the 

sidewalk along the South Main Street (east) side. The front gallery 

is now missing, but a side balcony is cantilevered at the second 

story level on the south side. This balcony is protected by a 

shed roof, and it is supported by wooden braces which angle out 

from the wall. Two ell extensions to the rear form a narrow open 

courtyard. Both ells have wooden balconies at the second story 

level. A corner entranceway has been cut into the northeast 

corner of the building.

A number of wood structures were once present in the district. 

Fire and deterioration have removed the majority of the wooden 

examples from the scene. Present condition of the remaining 

buildings varies, but a high proportion of the exemplary period 

structures are either under restoration or are restorable.
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The St. Charles Historic District has prinary importance as an area 

in which a high concentration of late eighteenth to early nineteenth 
century structures hare sunriTed with little alteration front their 

original appearance. St. Charles also has historical associations 

of major significance on a local and regional level. The extent of 

the historical significance of St. Charles is not yet fully under 

stood, but additional research on the early history of the city 

will unquestionably clarify the nature and degree of the city's 

importance in Missouri history.

Several of the properties in the district are especially noteworthy 

for their architectural design and their historical associations, 

but superceding the importance of any single structure, is the orer- 

all importance, the tout enseable, encompassing the characteristic 

form of the period structures, the arrangement of the structures on 

their parcels of land, near the street; the layout of the parcels 

within each block, some having additional structures behind those 

fronting OB the street; and the dimensions of the blocks, alleys, 

sidewalks and streets. All of these features which retain the lay 

out of the original town plan, contribute to the importance of the 

area as a representation of town planning and development in the 

eastern Midwest at the turn of the nineteenth century.

The form of the buildings reflects the limitations imposed by avail 

able capital, building experience, the labor force and locally 

available construction materials: handmade brick, quarried lime 

stone and hewn timber. Similar early development occurred else 

where in the Midwest, but has frequently been supplanted by succes 

sive waves of construction. The nearby St. Louis riverfront, for 

example, once had a similar appearance.

The pleasing visual aspect of the South Main Street area draws 
attention to the city's historical associations. St. Charles was 

founded in 1769 by Louis Blanchette. The city has historical sig 

nificance as the first white settlement north of the Missouri Hirer. 

Blanchette, a French Canadian hunter, founded the settlement as a
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fur trading post, originally called "Les Petits Cotes" because 

of the surrounding hills. The Tillage was settled priaarily by 

French traders, hunters and farmers. The Spanish, who ruled the 

Louisiana Territory from 1770-18C4, Bade little effort to colo 

nize St. Charles or the surrounding area.

Following the purchase of the Louisiana Territory by the United 

States GoTernment in l&A, the influence and importance of St. 

Charles increased. Located south of the confluence of the 

Mississippi and Missouri Rivere, this Tillage soon became an 

important outfitting station for both land and water transporta 

tion routes to the West.

Heriwether Lewis and William Clark embarked on their heroic 
voyage from St. Charles on Hay 21, I8o4. The journals of this 

expedition describe St. Charles as follows:

This Tillage Contns. about 100 houses, the most of them 

small and indefferent and about 450 inhabitents Chiefly 

French, those people appear Pore, polite and harmonious. 

(Bernard DeVoto, ed., The Journals of Lewis and Clark. 

1953, p. *>.)

In addition to its importance as a major river port, St. Charles 

was the departure point for the Boonelick Road. Originally 
blazed to serve the Boone brothers in their salt manufacturing 

works in Howard County, this road quickly became the settlers' 

route to Arrow Rock, at which point the Boonslick Trail joined 

with the Santa Fe Trail. A portion of the trail is visible as 

it runs from the intersection of South Main Street and Boonslick 

Boad to Highway 9<t (just over a mile in length). On the south 

west corner of South Main Street and Boonslick Boad stands the 

Western House, which served as a hostelry, stable and black 

smith shop.

The St. Charles Historic District is also significant as" the 

scene of the First Missouri State Capitol (l821-lo26K The 

buildings which house the capitol are presently being restored 

by the Missouri State Park Board, and have been listed on the 

National Register of Historic Places as the "First Missouri State 

Capitol Buildings."
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The ,St. Charles Historic District is currently included in a 

244 acre project area of the Land Clearance for Redevelopment 

Authority of the City of St. Charles, Missouri. The project 

is officially designated: First State Capitol Urban Renewal 

Project, Project No. Mo. R-63, St. Charles, Missouri.

The following statement on the current status of the project 

in St. Charles was prepared by Mr. James H. Quackenbush, 

Executive Director of the Land Clearance for Redevelopment 

Authority of the City of St. Charles, Missouri. Mr. Quackenbush 

supplied the statement at the request of the Missouri State 

Historical Survey and Planning Office in order to comply with 

the directive in the April, 1970 issue of the National Register 

Newsletter pertaining to National Register properties located in 

urban renewal areas:

The Land Clearance for Redevelopment Authority of the 

City of St. Charles, Missouri, has completed the first 

year of a two-year survey and planning study for the 

"First State Capitol Urban Renewal Project" in the 

City of St. Charles, Missouri.

The Project is financed under a $310,896 Contract for

Advance which was executed July 10, 1969, by the

Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development. . . .

The proposed project area, consisting of 244 acres, 

includes the downtown central business district (CBD), 

one mile of undeveloped frontage along the Missouri 

River, a Historical District, and the surrounding 

residential and commercial areas. The designated pro 

ject area is bounded generally on the east by the 

Missouri River, on the south by Reservoir Avenue, on 

the west by Fifth Street and on the north by Clark 

and Adams Streets. The Project comes under the com 

bined jurisdiction of the St. Charles LCRA, the City of 

St. Charles and the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD).

R. W. Booker and Associates, Inc., a St. Louis firm of 

engineers, architects and planners, has been engaged 

in the research and planning of the project. The 

Booker firm will render certain technical advice and 

assistance to the Authority in the preparation of an
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Urban Reneval Plan for the First State Capitol Project.

A federal grant of $4,602,402 has been reserved for 

the execution of the proposed St. Charles Urban Renewal 

Project. Within the project boundaries is the nearly 

restored historic First State Capitol building. . . .

The Urban Renewal Plan will be a blueprint for action 

to revitalize the Central Business District; reduce 

traffic and parking problems; renovate, preserve and/ 

or restore the Historical District; develop the Missouri 

River waterfront; conserve and rehabilitate the sur 

rounding residential and commercial areas within the 

Project; and to design and install certain improvements 

and public facilities such as streets, curbs, sidewalks, 

storm sewers, street lights, sanitary sewers, water 

lines, landscaping and park improvements.

(James H. Quackenbush, Executive Director of the Land 

Clearance for Redevelopment Authority of the City of 

St. Charles, Missouri, accompaniment to a letter to 

the Missouri State Historical Survey and Planning 

Office, June 25, 1970.)
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